
 



 
Charges, Virginia C. High   

 
 
1.          The defendant, Virginia C. High, is named in Counts One, Thirteen, Sixteen, Seventeen,     

 Eighteen,  Nineteen,  Twenty,  Twenty-One,  Twenty-Two, Twenty-Three and Twenty-Four 
of  a Thirty-Nine count indictment 1:92-CR-182 (Second Superseding), returned in the 
Northern District of Georgia. Count One charges that from a time unknown to the grand 
jury, but at least by in or about 1987, and continuing until on or about the date of the return 
of this indictment. Defendants Alex Gracia, David Lee Wallace, Sims Masel Jinks. Timothy 
Walker. Joel Peavy, Jimmy Coley, Elmer Adkins, Jr., Willie Lawrence Wyatt. George W. 
High, Virginia C. High,  Anna Mae Grazette. Vincent Ringer, and Gary Rounsaville. Aided 
and abetted by each other and others, known and unknown to the grand jury, including but 
not limited to Julio Cruz, Sr., Jose Prieto, Fernando Carreras, Juan Hernandez, Wilbrent 
Alvin Bain, Billy Eric Williams, Richard B. Simmons. Ronnie Renee Woods, Ladarius 
Frances Patrick, Larry Strong, Dana Gold, Anthony "Al" Brown, George Travis Williams, 
Lloyd Miller, Michael Thomas, who are not named in this count as defendants, did 
unlawfully, willfully and knowingly combine, conspire. confederate, agree and have a tacit 
understanding with each other and other persons unknown to the grand jury, to commit 
certain  offenses against the United States, to wit: to knowingly  and intentionally possess 
with intent to distribute and to distribute more than 5 kilograms of cocaine hydrochloride, 
and more than 50 grams of cocaine base, (crack), in violation of 21 U.SC. §§ 841(a)(1)  
and 846 and 18 U.S.C. § 2. 

 
2.         Count  Thirteen:  charges that from a date which is, to the grand jury, unknown, but at  

    least by in or about 1987, and continuing until the date of this indictment, defendants Alex 
Gracia, David Lee Wallace, Sims Masel Jinks, Joel Peavy, Jimmy Coley, George W. High, 
Virginia C. High, Anna Mae Grazette, Robert L. Ward, Jr., and Ladarius Francis Patrick 
together with other persons, known and unknown to the grand jury, did unlawfully, willfully 
and knowingly combine, conspire, confederate, agree and have a tacit understanding in 
violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 and 2 to commit violation of the laws of the United States of 
America and to defraud the United States of the equitable value of an asset, to wit: the 
improved real property located at 426 Peyton Road, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia, by 
mortgaging said  property to Beneficial Mortgage Company, and receiving value in 
exchange, knowing that the United States had lawfully seized said improved real property, in 
accordance  with the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 981.  

 
3.         Count Sixteen  charges that between on or about August 3, 1989 and August 5, 1989,   
            Defendants David Lee Wallace, Virginia C.  High, and Anna Mae Grazette, aided and 

abetted  by others, known and unknown to the grand jury, knowingly and wi1lfully, and 
for the  purpose of  evading the reporting requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 5313(a), and the 
regulations promulgated there under, structured, and assisted in structuring the transactions, 
involving the purchase of cashier's checks from domestic financial institutions in violation of 
31 U.S.C. § 5324(3),18 U.S.C. § 2 and 31 C.F.R. § 103.11. 

 
 

  
 
 



  
 
4.          Count Seventeen  charges that on or about August 9. 1989, defendants David Lee Wallace,    
             Virginia C. High and Anna Mae Grazette,  aided and abetted by others  known and unknown  

to the grand Jury,  did  conduct and cause to be conducted. a financial transaction. to wit:  the 
purchase and sale of improved  real property, located at 5648 Hunter Chase Court. Lithonia. 
Dekalb County, Georgia. utilizing the proceeds of unlawful activities. To wit: the possession 
with intent to distribute controlled substances, namely cocaine, both hydrochloride and base.  
with the intent to conceal the nature, source, ownership and control of said  proceeds. and 
with the knowledge that the monetary instruments utilized to purchase said property 
represented the proceeds of some form of illegal activity, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2, 
1956(a)(l)(B)(i) and 1956(a)(I)(B)(ii). 
 

5.        Count Eighteen  charges that on or about August 11, 1989, defendants Alex Gracia and   
Virginia C. High. Aided  and  abetted by others, known and unknown to the grand jury, did 
conduct and cause to be conducted, a financial transaction, to wit: the purchase and sale of 
improved real property, located at 4070 Cascade Road, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia,  
utilizing the proceeds of unlawful activities, to wit:  the possession with intent to distribute 
controlled substances, namely, cocaine, both hydrochloride and base, with the intent to 
conceal the nature, source, ownership and control of said proceeds, and with the knowledge 
that the monetary instruments utilized to purchase said property represented the proceeds of 
some form of illegal activity, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2, 1956(a)(1)(B)(i) and 
1956(a)(1)(B)(ii). 
 

6.         Count Nineteen  charges that between on or about August 11, 1989 and September 12, 1989    
 and between on or about November 15, 1989 and January 8, 1990,  defendants Alex Gracia 
and Virginia C. High, aided and abetted by others, known and unknown to the grand jury, 
knowingly and willfully, and for the purpose of evading the reporting requirements of  31 
U.S.C. § 5313(a), and the regulations promulgated thereunder, structured, and assisted in 
structuring the transactions, involving the purchase of cashier's checks from domestic. 
financial institutions in violation of 31 U.S.C. § 5324(3), 18 U.S.C. § 2 and 31 C.F.R. § 
103.11. 

 
7.         Count Twenty  charges that on or about June 19, 1990, defendants Sims Masel Jinks and    

  Virginia C. High, aided and abetted by others, known and unknown to the grand jury, did 
conduct, and cause to be conducted. a financial transaction, to wit: the purchase and sale of 
improved real property, located at 426 Peyton Road, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia. 
utilizing the proceeds of unlawful activities, to wit: the possession with intent to distribute 
controlled substances, namely, cocaine, both hydrochloride and base.  with the intent to 
conceal the nature, source, ownership and control of said proceeds, and with the knowledge 
that the monetary instruments utilized to purchase said property represented the proceeds of 
some form of illegal  activity, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2, 1956(a)(1)(B)(i) and 
1956(a)(1)(B)(ii). 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
8.         Count Twenty-One  charges that between on or about June 18, 1990 through June 19, 1990,   

defendants Sims Masel Jinks and Virginia C.  High, aided and abetted by others, known and 
unknown to the grand jury, knowingly and willfully, and for the purpose of evading the 
rep6rting requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 5313(a), and the regulations promulgated thereunder.  
structured and assisted in structuring the transactions involving the purchase of cashier's 
checks from domestic financial institutions in violation of 31  U.S.C. § 5324(3), 18 U.S.C. § 
2 and 31 C.F.R. § 103.11. 

 
9.          Count Twenty-Two charges that between on or about October 3, 1990 and October 5. 1990,     

 defendants Alex Gracia and Virginia C.  High, aided and abetted by others, known and 
unknown to the grand jury, knowingly and willfully, and for the purpose of evading the 
reporting requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 5313( a), and the regulations promulgated thereunder 
structured  and assisted in structuring the transactions, involving the purchase of cashier's 
checks from domestic financial institutions in violation of 31 U.S.C. § 5324(3),18 U.S.C. 
§ 2 and 31 C.F.R. § 103.11. 

 
10.       Count Twentv-Three  charges that on or about October 5. 1990, defendants Alex Gracia and     

      Virginia C. High. Aided and abetted by others  known and unknown to the grand jury, did   
      conduct  and cause to be conducted a financial transaction, to wit: the purchase and sale of 

improved real property, located at 2161 Peachtree Street, Unit 905, Atlanta. Fulton County, 
Georgia, utilizing the proceeds of  unlawful  activities, to wit: the possession with intent to 
distribute controlled ,substances,  namely, cocaine, both hydrochloride and base, with the 
intent to conceal the nature,  source,  ownership and control of said proceeds, and with the 
knowledge that the monetary instrument utilized to purchase said property represented the 
proceeds of  some form of illegal activity, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2, 1956(a)(1)(B)(i) 
and 1956( (J)( 1)( B)( ii). 

 
11.       Count Twenty-Four charges on or about December 15, 1990, defendants Alex Gracia        

      Virginia C. High and Robert L. Ward, Jr., aided and abetted by each other, and others, did     
      conduct, and cause to be conducted, a financial transaction, to wit: the purchase of a 1991   
      Infinity Q45, Vin: JNKNGO1COMM1O2034, utilizing the proceeds of unlawful activities,   
      to wit: the possession with intent to distribute controlled substances, namely, cocaine, both   
      hydrochloride and base, with the intent to conceal the nature, source, ownership and control  
     of said proceeds, and with the knowledge that the monetary instruments utilized to purchase   
     said property represented the proceeds of some form of illegal activity, in violation of 18    
     U.S.C. §§ 2, 1956(a)(1)(B)(i) and 1956(a)( l)(B)(ii). 

 
12.      The defendant entered a plea of not guilty as to all counts.  












































